
LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
MAY22, 2017

Present: Chair Bennett, R. Haak, J. Palmer, D. Richards, D. Simpson, J. Sparling, CEOA.  
Backus, Attorney J. Campbell & Secretary, A. Houk.     

Agenda:   
th1)  Approve themeeting minutes fromMay8, 2017.  

2)   Crown Castle/Verizon CellTower – Frank West property, Livonia, N.Y.  
SitePlanapproval – CellTower

Chair Bennett opened themeeting at7:00p.m.   

th1)  Meeting Minutes forMay8, 2017.  -  ChairR. Bennett asked foramotion toapprove.       
M/2/C (J. Palmer/J. Sparling) approved assubmitted.  Carried 6-0

2)  Crown Castle/Verizon CellTower – Frank West property, Livonia, N.Y.  

ChairR. Bennett invited Jeffrey DavisofBarclay Damon, Attorney for theapplicant, Crown
Castle andco-applicant Verizon Wireless, JohnLynch ofTranscend Wireless, SiteActivation
Consultant andJoshDoolin, Radio Frequency Engineer ofVerizon Wireless tocome forward.    

CEOA. Backus read thePublic Notice:  

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that theLIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD willholdapublic
hearing onMonday May22, 2017at7p.m. attheLivonia Town Hall, 35Commercial Street,  
Livonia, NewYork toconsider theapplication ofCrown Castle/ Verizon Wireless for
SitePlan andConditional UsePermit application pursuant toArticle XII & XIVoftheVillage of
Livonia Zoning Code.  Thesiteplanapplication isfortheconstruction ofa155’ Cellular Tower
tobelocated offWildbriar Drive (butabove andbehind Dollar General), intheVillage of
Livonia, NYandiszoned Gateway Commercial District.  Thisapplication isonfile inthe
Livonia Building andZoning Department intheLivonia TownHall, 35Commercial Street,  
Livonia, NewYork, forpublic review.  All interested parties willbeheard atthistime.  

CEOA. Backus polled theBoard forsitevisits:  

ChairR. Bennett Yes
R. Haak Yes
J. Palmer Yes
D. Richards Yes
D. Simpson Yes
J. Sparling Yes

1



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
MAY22, 2017

ChairR. Bennett stated that thiswasthesecond Public Hearing.  AtthefirstPublic Hearing the
concerns were regarding theproximity oftheexisting propane tanks andthevisual aspects ofthe
CellTower.  Asaresult, wewentback totheapplicant andasked them toexplore additional
potential sites & provide data showing what wasrequired forthetower height.  They have
returned withaTower height of155’, which istheminimum requirement forwhat theyneed.   
They have established aneed fortheCellTower anddetermined the location theyhave asked for
isthebest location tohave.  TheTown hashired Consultant Professor William Johnson to
review theEngineer’sreports, andhasconcluded that theyarecorrect.    

Jeffrey Davis stated theoriginal application waspresented back inJanuary 2016.  The
application wasdeemed incomplete socertain aspects oftheCode could bereviewed further,  
primarily alternative locations.   TheBoard retained Professor William Johnson ofR.I.Ttowork
withCrown Castle & Verizon toreview theneed forthefacility & explore alternate locations
suggested bytheBoard.  After meetings withProfessor W. Johnson, Crown Castle & Verizon
Wireless R.F. Engineers, theyrevitalized theapplication andcame back inDecember of2016.   
During thisprocess, theTower waslower inheight andlocation wasshifted slightly which
removed theneed foranyrequired variances.  Currently thenewapplication meets allsetback
requirements under theCode, however still requires aSpecial UsePermit.  Ausethat isallowed
inthedistrict provided youmeetcertain criteria asoutlined intheCode.  Theneed forthis
application istoaddress Verizon’sexisting 4GLTE network issues that theyarecurrently having
intheVillage.  J. Davis reviewed thecurrent coverage areas fromexisting Towers inthearea.   
Heexplained that thearea inthemiddleofthecurrent coverage areas, which istheVillage and
south islacking adequate, reliable coverage.   Byadding anadditional Tower, notonlywill it
provide coverage totheVillage andtheTown, butwillalsooffload & allow theexisting Towers
toperform better.  Thecurrent Towers areunable toprovide adequate usercapacity andRF
coverage totheVillage andsouth towards theLivonia HighSchool.    

thTheywereherebefore thePlanning Board onApril24 topresent therevised proposal andare
thhere tonight toanswer any further questions.  There arenochanges intheApril24 proposal ofa

155’ Monopole CellTower, with twelve Verizon antennas atacenter lineof150’ & a5’  
Lightning Rod.  Thisproposal meets allthecode requirements andsetbacks withnovariances
needed.  Theycanenhance theproposed landscaping byplanting additional staggered deer
resistant treeswhich willprovide further coverage forthebase.  Theaccess roadwill beoff
Wildbriar & thesite location isapproximately 1000’ feet fromMain Street.  Theproposal isto
move forward with thepresent proposed sitebehind Dollar General ontheFrank Westproperty,  
which isa100’ X100’ leased area.  Theactual site location willbea60’ X60’ fenced in
compound area.   Inside thecompound willbetheTower, IceBridge andVerizon equipment on
steelplatform onanoutdoor pad.   Thesitewilloperate un-maned, 24Hrs. adayandhasno
lighting.   

InJanuary of2016, Crown Castle performed aballoon testat175’, theyhaveworked with their
Engineer’stosimulate what thenewTower heightof155’ would look like.  Thetestwasdoneat

2



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
MAY22, 2017

sixteen different locations around theVillage ofLivonia.  D. Simpson asked what thediameter
oftheballoon was.  J. Davisstated itwasa4’-5’ Orange Balloon.  
1) OldMeadow Court – approximately 4000’ westofthesite, itwasnotvisible.  
2)  Summer Street – Approx. 3750’ eastofthesite – itwasvisible.  
3)  BigTreeRoad – Approx. 2700’ westofsite – visible.  
4)  Entrance toBowen Park – 2065’ eastofsite – notvisible.  
5)  Westview Apartments – 650’ westofsite – visible.  
6)  MainStreet – 1500’ eastofsite – notvisible.  
7)  Commercial Street & BigTree – visible.  
8)  Main & HighStreet – notvisible.  
9)  MainStreet – approx. 780’ southofsite – mostvisible.  
10)  Post Office – notvisible.  
11)  Ward Avenue – visible.  
12)  Spring & Church Street – approx. 1340’ south eastofsite – visible.  
13)  Sunset & Summer Street – approx. 2135’ eastofsite – visible.  
14) BigTree & WestAvenue – visible.  
15) West Avenue – approx. 2425’ southofsite – notvisible.  
16)  Sunset Circle – approx. 1400’ eastofsite – visible.  

Theendgoal istoprovide Verizon aTower at155’ toaddress coverage issues intheVillage and
providing coverage totheHighSchool.  Thiswillallowtheother sitestooperate more
efficiently andprovide better, more reliable coverage.  D. Simpson stated thatmoving theTower
back tothenorth hasbeen discussed several times andposes many challenges incoverage.  Most
oftheTower would notbevisible fromtheVillage ofLivonia.  Youwillseeitwhenyouare
driving byorintheimmediate vicinity.  Would disguising theTower beanoption?  J. Davis
stated thedifficulty withdisguising, itwillbecome much more visibleonthehorizon.  There is
notenough around ittouseadisguise mechanism successfully.   Professor W. Johnson agreed
withJ. Davis, itisverydifficult totrytodisguise thetower.  Thetower pole isgraygalvanized
dullgraywhich seems tobeoneofthebestdisguises.    

ChairR. Bennett opened thePublic Hearing.  Heasked that theyraisetheirhand, state their
name andaddress fortheBoard.  

MaryAnnRzeszutek of7001 Stone Hillasked asfarastheneedwas, didtheschool complain
about reception ordidthecarrier determine there wasaneed.  Jeff stated that thenetwork has
changed withupgrading from3Gto4GLTEwhich changed howthenetwork operated.  Verizon
determined issues with existing coverage.  JoshDoolin, R. F. Engineer withVerizon Wireless
stated thattheyhavemonitoring tools thatgives them usage information andwhenasiteis
reaching itscapacity.   Oneofproblems they areexperiencing inthisarea islossofuser
connections which istypically caused bymoredistance usersandpoor radio frequency
conditions.  Theequipment hastokeep re-trying tomakeconnections, which usesupthetimefor
future communication andasaresult, there aremore dropped calland lossofcoverage.   CEOA.  

3



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
MAY22, 2017

Backus stated thathebelieves thequestion waswhether theTower needed tobetaller toreach
theHighSchool, forkidsthatarenotsupposed tobeontheircellphones during school.  J. Davis
stated thatwasanissuethatwasworked through withProfessor W. Johnson.  Verizon has
coverage goals andtheHighSchool wasonthefringeofcoverage area.  J. Davis reviewed the
profile terrain plotcoverage mapswithBoard toshow signal coverages. Thisproposal for155’  
Tower, which just reaches intothecoverage areawith thebuildings, trees & terrain coverage in
theway.  During discussions withProfessor W. Johnson andVerizon, theydetermined howlow
theycouldgoinorder tomaintain coverage.  Professor W. Johnson stated thatitwasdetermined
that forasingle sitesolution, theminimum antennas height required was150’ inorder toreach
theHighSchool.    

D. Simpson askedhowfarsouth oftheHighSchool thecoverage areawasforthisproposal.    
J. Doolin ofVerizon Wireless stated thatitwillcoveralloftheLivonia Village andjustsouthof
theHighSchool.  Overlap incoverage area isneeded when creating coverage.  J. Davis stated
that there isaneed foradominant server intheareawhich canprovide coverage forthenew4G
network & thedifferent frequencies.    

GusSchroeder of21Washington Street askedwhythere wasn’tanypictures taken from
Washington Street since itisjustwestofhishouse.  J. Davis stated thatitwasnotvisible from
Washington Street when theywere taking thepictures.  Gus stated that from thestreet, hecould
seetheballoon.  Guswanted clarification oftherelocation fromtheoriginal proposal towhat
theyareasking fortoday.  TheTower wasmoved approximately 35’ North West andlowered to
155’.  

Andy English of3397Poplar HillRoad statedhisconcern washowtheTowerwillaffect the
landscape.  It’sveryapparent onMainStreet between ShurFine & Embers.  Why isn’tthe
location uphigher onahillwhere itcould bemore concealed?  Ifitcould bemoved further back,  
thesite linewould become further & further awayfromtheVillage entryway.  Mr. English stated
hefelt that thelocation suites Crown Castle thebestbecause they havemade itthebestsituation.    
Moving itindifferent directions starts tocostmore money.  Hedrives through Avon every day
anddoesn’tseeanyTowers intheirVillage.  Heisalsoconcerned about future development to
theTower.  

GusSchroeder stated thatEastAvon’sWater Tower hasantennas allaround it.  Lakeville Avon
Water Tower onRt. 256hasTowers onitaswell.  ChairR. Bennett stated thatwhen yougetoff
attheConesus Lakeexit from390 looking south, there isCellTower andinHoneoye Falls
behind theBrewery, there isaTower.    

MikeDougherty of27BigTreestated thathisproperty isadjacent theproposed Tower site.  He
wasconcerned tohear thatitwasgoing tobesoclose intheVillage.  Hehoped thattheywould
consider moving itbackasitwould belessobvious inourVillage.  OnStoneHill, nearJakman
Hill there iscurrently aRadio Tower andasked iftheyhadconsidered utilizing space fromthere

4



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
MAY22, 2017

since itisalready upandserves Livonia.  D. Simpson stated hethought itwasowned bythe
Livingston County andserved asa911tower.  M. Dougherty discussed coverage distances with
J. Davis for theTriphammer Tower location.  J. Davis stated that this isasectorized antenna
arraywhich provides coverage inadifferent pattern & theneed fordominate server inthe
Village.  

Professor W. Johnson stated thediscussion back inAugust of2016wastodetermine thebest
possible sitefortheTower.  Working withasinglesite, howtalldoestheTower needtobe &  
where does ithavetobelocated.  Thedensest usersarelocated intheVillage andasyoumove
away thepopulation ofusers become less.  Putting aTower intheVillage allows youtooffer the
bestcoverage tothemost users.  TheBoard asked theapplicant toreview other possible sites and
provide datashowing thecoverage.  Each ofthealternate sitesdidnotwork based oncoverage
andcapacity.  Thetechnical documentation ispresented intheapplication wearereviewing
today thatsupports theproposed location.  Professor W. Johnson stated thathismeeting was
intended tobenon-confrontational with theapplicant, wewere justtrying tofindagood
solution.  Inhisexperience, Verizon triestobestraight forward inpresenting information.  This
isasingle sitesolution thatprovides thecapacity coverage torelieve traffic fromtheexisting
Verizon sites, provide service totheresidences ofLivonia anddoitinawaytomaximize the
number ofusers thatcanaccess thissystem & prevent theneedforadditional Tower sites inthe
near future.  Bydoing thiscorrectly now, itdelays theneedformore basestation sites.  There
willbeother Towers inLivonia whichwill depend onthedemographics.  Dothesitecorrectly
thefirsttime, getting theminimum height, thebestcoverage andcapacity actually benefits the
Town.  Itwillprevent someofthecarriers coming before theBoard sooner thantheyneedto.   
AsaConsultant, Iamtrying tomake surewhat thefactsareandthat theyareoutonthetable.   
Theinformation provided today istechnically sound.  This isnot theonlysitethatcould beused,  
butit’stheonlysiteviable technically andavailable forlandcontrol sotheycanputthesitein.   
Ifthereareother sitesthatarenearby, theyarestillgoing tobea155’ Tower, single siteto
obtain thesame coverage.  Iftherearebetter sites thanwhathascurrently beenproposed, we
haven’thadanyone suggest what thatmight be.  Theone’sthatwere looked at, seemed likethey
might havebeengood sitesbutdidnotmeet thetechnical requirements.  M. Dougherty stated
thathehadnoproblem with theTower beingonF. West property.  Hethought that itwould be
located moreonthefringeoftheVillage line, instead ofdirectly intheVillage.  Herealizes that
itwouldn’tbeasefficient based onwhatyouhaveexplained, buthehasn’tseenalotofCell
Towers directly inthecenter ofother Villages.  ChairR. Bennett stated that intheVillage of
Geneseo attheCounty Building, there isaTower that isover200’ asitrequires alight.    

Professor W. Johnson stated thatAttorney J. Campbell asked himtospeak ontheFCC
requirements.  TheFCCrequires alicense holder toprovide substantial service totheir coverage
area.  Attorney J. Campbell stated thatsubstantial coverage isamoving target.  Companies
haven’tanticipated whatdatausage isnow, andthat iswhat iscausing themtheneedtore-vamp
theirnetworks.  J. Davis stated that itisveryhard toproject datacoverage needs asmore people
areusing theirphones, tablets andcomputers which require additional coverage requirements.  

5



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
MAY22, 2017

G. Shroeder asked whytheproposed newcoverage siteissmaller thantheexisting twoother
towers.  J. Davisstated because oftopography andlineofsiteandreviewed thecoverage map.   
Theexisting towers aretrying tocover more areaandcan’tmeet thedemand.  Questions were
asked againwhytheycan’tmove thetower totheNorth.  Moving further totheNorth, willmove
further away fromwhere thedominate coverage area that isneeded.  Furthermore, theland
owner isnotwilling tolease thelandtothenorth asheisanticipating future development forthat
area.    

CEOA. Backus wanted toaddress analternative solution, which would havebeen multiple sites.   
Professor W. Johnson stated going tomultiple siteswould bemuch morecostly which would get
passed down totheendusers.  Amultiple sitesolution doesaccomplish someofthegoals, but
would create other implications.  CEOA. Backus stated that theCodestates itisdesigned and
constructed inamanner whichminimizes visual impact totheextent practical.  Practical
becomes theissue, ifisnotpractical todomultiple sites, thenthat isouranswer.  Wewant to
make surewehavemade sure thissite imposes theminimal visual impact possible.  Professor W.  
Johnson stated that intheVillage ofAmherst, theyhaveadensely populated area. They have
placed antennas onthetopofutility poles, which isasolution forthatareaastheyhavealarge
number ofsubscribers inadensely populated area, however Amherst ismoredensely populated
thanLivonia.  Multiple short sites areanoption andhavebeenused byVerizon inother
locations.  J. Davis stated thepopulation inLivonia would notsupport atwoorthree sitesolution
when onesitewilldo, which iswhat the legalstandard isinNewYorkwithapublic utility.  A
twotower siteinLivonia might mean youwould have two120’ inclose proximity trying todo
thesame thingthatonetower does.  Itcouldpossibly takeuptosevensmall towers to
accomplish whatonedoes.  Itwould exceed what ispractical andfeasible fromanengineering &  
company standpoint totrytoprovide coverage.  M. Dougherty asked ifother small towns were
putting upCellTowers intheVillages.  Attorney J. Campbell stated that towns suchasAvon and
Lima thathave existing water towers areutilizing those for theirCellTower needs.  J. Davis
stated thatnewtowers arealways alastresort.    

D. Simpson stated thatitisthisBoards jobtogothrough great detail tomake sure thiswillbea
benefit totheTown andVillage ofLivonia.  Technology wise, this isgreat solution.  ThisBoard
hasputinalotofeffort tomake sure this istherightspotoftheTower buthefeels there are
other choices, evenmoving itback farther ontheproposed property.  Heanticipates other
providers coming onthisTower. Crown Castle has, onaverage, twoandhalfcellproviders per
Tower.  Theother carriers willhave thesame technology issues thatVerizon hasandwant to
reach thehighest goalasVerizon, sotheywillwantataller antenna.  Isthat thebestthing forthe
people ofLivonia tobelooking atevery day?  Isthere something wecandonowtominimize the
impact?  Moving tothenorth, thereareobjections, buttheyareallsolvable.  Ataller antenna
further backwould accommodate future carrier needs andwould havealess impact visually.  J.  
Doolin ofVerizon stated thatiftheywere tomove thetowera1000’ tothenorth, thiswould be
approximately 20-25% fromthecelledge.  Thatwouldbeahuge lossinpower which wouldput
thecelledge right through thecenter ofLivonia andwould result ininterference andpoor cell
coverage.  Attorney J. Campbell stated thatmoving theTower tothenorth issomething thathas

6



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
MAY22, 2017

stuckwith thisBoard since thebeginning proposal.  J. Campbell asked ifcoverage issues could
bemitigated byincreasing theheight oradditional technology.  Thistowerwillhavethenewest
equipment that’spending tobereleased inJanuary.  D. Simpson asked iftheexisting towers
could beadjusted tobecompatible withahigher tower inVillage.  J. Doolin stated that the
existing towers areshorter towers buthavehigher ground elevation andtheamount of
interference that theywould cause isunacceptable fromanetwork pointofview.  ANorth &  
taller tower inLivonia would actually hurt, nothelp theexisting towers.  J. Davis stated that the
answer isnotalways height, each tower has itscoverage areaanddistance & height effects the
other nearby existing towers.  J. Davis stated that theyareunderaFCCbackdropthat isalready
over thetime limits that thisVillage should beacting onandoperating ona30dayextension to
thatshotclock.  Allofthenearby tower sitesarebeing impacted nowbecause oftheRadio
Frequency situations inLivonia.   They have identified aproblem intheir network anditneeds to
beaddressed.  They havespent overayearworking withaconsultant andVerizon, looking at
alternative locations, lowering andmoving thelocation ofthetower.  Even ifitwastobemoved
200’ back, it’sstillavisible tower.  Moving itfurther west isnotgoing tomake itdisappear.  D.  
Simpson asked ifAT & TorSprint comes andwants tobeonthetower, whatheight would be
required toachieve thesame coverage asVerizon.   Professor W. Johnson stated there aremany
variables, eachcarrier isdifferent andtheywill facethesame issues asVerizon.  J. Davis stated
thatwedon’tknow what their coverage requirements are, where theyareontheneighboring Cell
Tower heights.  Theywould beinthegeneral frequency range, butthey arealldifferent.  It
would depend ontheirspecific needandcoverage goal forcellcoverage, noteveryone iscreated
equal andeachnetwork iscompletely different.  Professor W. Johnson stated that thefrequency
bands atAT & Tarethesame thateveryone else isusing.  They operate atdifferent frequencies
within thebands, another carrier willbefaced with thesame issues.    

R. Haak asked forclarification whytheHighSchool location didn’tworkout.  TheHighSchool
wasnotasitethatwasunder consideration.  Thepopulation density ofsubscribers isinthe
Village andthat isagoodplace forthetower tobetopullasmuchofftheotherexisting towers
andhave thebestcoverage.    

Attorney J. Campbell stated that thesubject ofmoving theantenna tothenorth hascontinued to
come because it’simportant.  Heasked Professor W. Johnson ifthere wasanywayto
accomplish thisandgetareasonable coverage area that thecarrier requires without building
another site.  Professor W. Johnson stated thathedidnotbelieve thatitwouldbetechnically
viable.  Attorney J. Campbell stated thatthisseems tobeoneofthemain issues.  Heasked what
more theBoard would needtogetpastthepossibility ofmoving thetower tothenorth.  D.  
Simpson stated thatmaybe notmoving itback1000’, butback farther outoftheviewofpeople
driving through Livonia.  Professor W. Johnson stated thatnoneoftheoptions havebeen looked
atbecause itwould notallow thesectors tobeplaced inlocations thatcanpickupthemajority of
thecell traffic fromtheVillage ofLivonia.  Asyoumove thetower back, therewillbedegrees
oflessperformance.  

7



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
MAY22, 2017

ChairR. Bennett asked Attorney J. Campbell; iftheywere todisapprove thisapplication because
oftheaesthetics andthiswere togotocourt, would theyviewsimilar applications andcompare
thistothose.  Attorney J. Campbell stated itisentirely possible.  ChairR. Bennett stated that
thereareotherCellTowers inthisregion thataremuch bigger.  TheTower intheVillage of
Geneseo ismuch taller & hasmore lattice work thanthisproposal.   There isa135’ tower in
Honeoye Fallsbehind theBrewery.  Hehasbeendriving there fortenyears andnever noticed it.    
Attorney J. Campbell stated thatifthiswere togobefore ajudge, itwouldbeabalancing test
whether ornotthisBoard wasreasonable indiscerning aneed forsomething different basedon
theapplication materials andtheConsultant’sreport.  Once theyshow need, youhave
obligations.  There would havetobeareasonable alternative toturndowntheproposal basedon
location.  J. Davis stated that theyhavemetalltheCode criteria.  It’sinanapproved Zoning
District, theyhave metsetbacks, andheight.  Hebelieves that theyhave provided anapplication
withallthesupporting details thataddresses alltheissues.    

ChairR. Bennett asked each Board member iftheyneeded more information tomakeadecision.   
Theconsensus wasthattheyhaveenough information.  Attorney J. Campbell stated that they
nextstepwould betoclose thePublic Hearing.    

ChairR. Bennett asked foramotion toclose thePublic Hearing.  M/2/C (J. Palmer/D.Richards)    
Carried 6-0.  

Attorney J. Campbell confirmed withJ. Davis thathewillallow anextension fordecision.  He
alsostated thatwehave received aresponse dated May16, 2017 fromtheLivingston County
Planning Board stating therewasnotarecommendation forapproval ordisapproval, anditwasa
localoption.  There weresome informal recommendations.  Oneoftherecommendations was
that theVillage ofLivonia should benotified.  CEOA. Backus stated thatweareajointBoard
andhehasincluded theVillage inthisprocess along thewayandtheyhavebeengiven the
application andasetofdrawings andareaware onwhat’sgoing on.   

ChairR. Bennett stated thatsince there isadditional SEQR review necessary, theywill table the
motion tovoteuntil thenextmeeting sotheBoard hasample timetoreview theforms.  

Wewillschedule theCellTower onthenextPlanning Board Meeting Agenda forJune12, 2017.  

Withnofurther questions, ChairR. Bennett asked foramotion toadjourn themeeting at9:25
p.m.….  M/2/C (D. Richards/J. Palmer) Carried 6-0.  

Respectfully Submitted,   
Alison Houk, Recording Secretary

8



LIVONIA JOINT PLANNING BOARD
MAY22, 2017

9


